
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

JJuullyy  11,,  22002244  
  



 
June 26, 2024  6:08:22 PM 

 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

JULY 1, 2024 
COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM 

116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 
 

 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Keyes 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Minutes of June 3, 2024  
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) FY25 Salary Schedule/COLA Adjustments 
d) RESO 2024-22:  Proclamation—Designation of July as Parks & Recreation Month 
e) RESO 2024-23 Authorizing Execution of A 2nd Utility Right of Way Agreement with 

Dominion Energy to Install and Connect Electrical Utilities at the Newly Constructed PK-12 
School 

f) RESO 2024-24:  Recognizing and Approving of the Official America 250 NC Committee 
 

Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker)  
 
Item 3   6:20 PM  Department Information Update: Soil & Water, Chris Respass 
 
Item 4 6:40 PM Tax Collector’s Annual Settlement Report, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
Item 5 6:50 PM EMTOC Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA & Mr. Jason Squires, ACM 
 
Item 6 7:00 PM Pocosin Charter School Facilities/Funding Request, Commissioner Phelps 
    
Item 7 7:10 PM NCACC Voting Delegate, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
 
Item 8 7:20 PM  Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 

a. JCPC Appointments 
 
Item 9 7:30 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy Dixon, 

Finance Officer 
  
Item 10 7:40 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 

a. NCACC Legislative Goals for FY24-25 
 

Item 11 7:50 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-
client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 

     Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  July 1, 2024 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
 

a) Approval of Minutes for June 3, 2024. Regular Meeting. See attachments at the end of 
the package. 
 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
See attached.   
 

c) FY25 Salary Schedule/COLA Adjustments 
See attached. 
 

d) RESO 2024-22:  Proclamation—Designation of July as Parks & Recreation Month 
See attached. 
 

e) RESO 2024-23 Authorizing Execution of A 2nd Utility Right of Way Agreement with 
Dominion Energy to Install and Connect Electrical Utilities at the Newly Constructed PK-12 
School 
See attached. 
 

f) RESO 2024-24:  Recognizing and Approving of the Official America 250 NC Committee 
See attached.  
Chair Keyes was approached about the Commissioners supporting this resolution. 

 
 

 
 









Grade Position Title FY25 #POS FY25 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 Step 11 Step 12 Step 13 Step 14 Step 15 Step 16 Step 17
(YORE) Index: 44 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7&8 9&10 11&12 13&14 15&16 17&18 19&20 21&22 23&24 25&26

8 Veteran's Service OfficerFrozen PT 23,260$       23,838$       24,443$       25,062$       25,653$       26,339$       26,971$       27,656$       28,342$       29,028$       29,767$       30,480$       31,287$       32,053$       32,819$       33,666$       34,507$       
Office Assistant/Floater PT
Housekeeper 2
Maintenance Worker I 3
Senior Center Nutrition Prog. Mgr. 1
Asst Register of Deeds 1
Landfill Operator 1
Accounting Techniciation 1
Property Tax Clerk 2
Utilitity/AR Clerk 2
Waterworks Techanician I 4
Administrative Assistant 3 29,673$       30,386$       31,179$       31,905$       32,711$       33,532$       34,379$       35,240$       36,100$       36,987$       37,942$       38,896$       39,864$       40,859$       41,881$       42,902$       43,975$       
Code Enforement Officer 1 30,735$       31,474$       32,267$       33,088$       33,895$       34,755$       35,629$       36,516$       37,431$       38,345$       39,300$       40,254$       41,276$       42,351$       43,387$       44,449$       45,560$       

16
Chief Landfill Operator                            
Water Plant OperatorFrozen

1           
0 31,784$       32,590$       33,383$       34,231$       35,064$       35,952$       36,826$       37,767$       38,708$       39,690$       40,685$       41,666$       42,741$       43,764$       44,893$       45,996$       47,145$       

Airport Operations Manager 1 32,833$       33,666$       34,514$       35,361$       36,248$       37,162$       38,089$       39,030$       40,012$       41,007$       42,015$       43,077$       44,180$       45,242$       46,371$       47,528$       48,716$       
Soil and Water Supervisor 1
Assistant Tax Assessor 1
Delinquent Tax Coordinator 1
Accounting/HR Specialist 1
Recreation Director 1
Senior Center Director 1
Airport Development Director 1
Tax Land Records Coord 1

21 Clerk to Board/Admin. Asst. 1 37,081$       38,022$       38,990$       39,959$       40,954$       41,962$       42,984$       44,100$       45,188$       46,304$       47,487$       48,631$       49,410$       51,118$       52,395$       53,712$       55,055$       
Elections Director (FN1) 1
Deputy Tax Administrator 1
IT Systems Operator 1
Maintenance Supervisor 1 41,396$       42,419$       43,454$       44,516$       45,673$       46,802$       47,918$       49,168$       50,365$       51,615$       52,919$       54,263$       55,608$       57,006$       58,432$       59,857$       61,353$       
Water Treatment Plant Supervisor 1
Grants & Procurement Manager 1
Register of Deeds (FN2) 1 43,481$       44,543$       45,726$       46,828$       47,985$       49,208$       50,418$       51,695$       52,973$       54,304$       55,649$       57,047$       58,472$       59,924$       61,416$       62,949$       64,522$       

28 Deputy Finance Officer/Financial Analys 1 44,529$       45,699$       46,815$       47,944$       49,181$       50,405$       51,682$       52,960$       54,291$       55,635$       57,019$       58,445$       59,883$       61,389$       62,922$       64,482$       66,094$       
34 Tax Administrator 1 50,943$       52,220$       53,537$       54,828$       56,200$       57,598$       59,036$       60,529$       62,048$       63,595$       65,181$       66,808$       68,475$       70,182$       71,944$       73,758$       75,602$       
39 Utilities Director 1 56,267$       57,638$       59,104$       60,583$       62,102$       63,634$       65,207$       66,848$       68,516$       70,249$       71,998$       73,812$       75,627$       77,523$       79,459$       81,435$       83,471$       
40 Planning Dir./Bldg Insp (Dual Role) 1 57,342$       58,781$       60,219$       61,753$       63,272$       64,831$       66,445$       68,139$       69,833$       71,567$       73,355$       75,197$       77,066$       78,975$       81,247$       82,995$       85,070$       

Finance Officer 1
Assistant County Manager 1
FN1: Elections Director & Employee Compensation Subject to NCGS 163-37
FN2: Sheriff&ROD Compensation Subject to NCGS 153A-92
FN3: Time spent in uncertified positions is not counted for YORE purposes in a higher pay grade/range position resulting from obtaining certification
FY23 Note: Total actual compensation amounts for NCSU Coop Extension Staff should be monitored to insure equitable progression comparable to regular county staff.  Countywide COLAs shall be applied to county only portion of NCSU Coop Extension Staff.
Historical COLAs: [2% 2013];     [2% 2015];     [2% 2018];  [1st YORE adj began w/ Jan22' payroll a year after Jan21' grade adj]     [2.5% 7.16.22];     [2.5% 7.16.23];    [2.5% 7.16.24]

37,678$       29,444$       

FY25 Washington County 

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (County - Non Sheriff/Emergency Services & Non-DSS)

11

36,759$       30,198$       30,923$       31,717$       32,497$       33,290$       34,137$       

12

10 25,411$       26,029$       34,997$       35,871$       26,675$       27,361$       28,020$       28,746$       

33,855$       27,132$       27,818$       28,490$       29,216$       29,929$       30,694$       31,421$       32,215$       33,047$       

30,009$       30,789$       31,542$       32,336$       33,169$       33,989$       34,822$       35,723$       36,584$       

50,328$       

43,643$       44,772$       45,874$       46,990$       48,200$       

15

13

14

28,570$       29,296$       37,498$       38,425$       39,380$       40,334$       41,411$       42,446$       

17

18 33,908$       34,782$       44,462$       45,565$       46,748$       47,851$       49,101$       

25

27

22

50,418$       

20

19

44

26,460$       

Revised/Effective: 7/16/2024

26 42,445$       43,481$       44,543$       45,712$       46,828$       47,985$       49,195$       

40,847$       

34,702$       35,562$       36,477$       37,391$       38,291$       39,248$       

27,509$       28,234$       28,921$       29,660$       30,373$       31,166$       31,892$       32,698$       33,519$       34,352$       35,199$       36,072$       36,973$       37,914$       38,856$       39,851$       

35,629$       36,530$       37,444$       38,358$       39,326$       40,282$       41,276$       42,351$       43,400$       

34,997$       35,858$       36,731$       37,660$       38,574$       39,528$       40,590$       41,572$       42,594$       

36,033$       36,934$       37,847$       38,789$       39,810$       40,778$       41,801$       42,822$       43,884$       

47,676$       48,845$       50,055$       51,292$       52,596$       53,901$       55,259$       56,640$       

49,396$       50,607$       51,872$       

44,987$       46,102$       47,259$       48,442$       49,639$       50,902$       52,167$       53,471$       

38,184$       39,166$       40,093$       41,088$       42,083$       43,185$       44,261$       45,350$       46,479$       

62,022$       63,595$       65,168$       66,808$       68,475$       70,182$       71,929$       73,758$       75,587$       77,469$       79,405$       81,395$       83,426$       85,523$       87,647$       89,866$       92,112$       

51,695$       52,973$       54,304$       55,649$       57,034$       58,458$       59,924$       61,403$       62,938$       



Grade FY25 Position Title #POS FY25 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10 Step 11 Step 12 Step 13 Step 14 Step 15 Step 16 Step 17
(YORE) Index: 69 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7&8 9&10 11&12 13&14 15&16 17&18 19&20 21&22 23&24 25&26

Telecommunicator I - Uncert (FN3) 2
12 WCSO Animal Control Officer 1 $27,509 $28,234 $28,921 $29,660 $30,373 $31,166 $31,892 $32,698 $33,519 $34,352 $35,199 $36,072 $36,973 $37,914 $38,856 $39,851 $40,847

WCSO Admin Asst 1
Telecommunicator II - EMD Cert 7
Detention Officer 8
EMT Basic 8

16 Detention Corporal 3 $31,784 $32,590 $33,383 $34,231 $35,064 $35,952 $36,826 $37,767 $38,708 $39,690 $40,685 $41,666 $42,741 $43,764 $44,893 $45,996 $47,145
17 EMT Intermediate 5 $32,833 $33,666 $34,514 $35,361 $36,248 $37,162 $38,089 $39,030 $40,012 $41,007 $42,015 $43,077 $44,180 $45,242 $46,371 $47,528 $48,716
18 Detention - Lieutenant 1 $33,908 $34,782 $35,629 $36,530 $37,444 $38,358 $39,326 $40,282 $41,276 $42,351 $43,400 $44,462 $45,565 $46,748 $47,851 $49,101 $50,328
21 911 Telecom Supervisor - EMD Cert 1 $37,081 $38,022 $38,990 $39,959 $40,954 $41,962 $42,984 $44,100 $45,188 $46,304 $47,487 $48,631 $49,410 $51,118 $52,395 $53,712 $55,055
22 EMT Paramedics 9 $38,184 $39,166 $40,093 $41,088 $42,083 $43,185 $44,261 $45,350 $46,479 $47,676 $48,845 $50,055 $51,292 $52,596 $53,901 $55,259 $56,640
23 Chief Detention Officer 1 $39,246 $40,200 $41,195 $42,284 $43,320 $44,368 $45,471 $46,614 $47,783 $48,993 $50,189 $51,454 $52,731 $54,048 $55,407 $56,778 $58,197
26 WCSO Deputy 8 $42,445 $43,481 $44,543 $45,712 $46,828 $47,985 $49,195 $50,418 $51,695 $52,973 $54,304 $55,649 $57,034 $58,458 $59,924 $61,403 $62,938
27 WCSO Corporal 2 $43,481 $44,543 $45,726 $46,828 $47,985 $49,208 $50,418 $51,695 $52,973 $54,304 $55,649 $57,047 $58,472 $59,924 $61,416 $62,949 $64,522
28 WCSO Sergeant 2 $44,529 $45,699 $46,815 $47,944 $49,181 $50,405 $51,682 $52,960 $54,291 $55,635 $57,019 $58,445 $59,883 $61,389 $62,922 $64,482 $66,094
29 WCSO Investigator 3 $45,632 $46,774 $47,905 $49,127 $50,351 $51,602 $52,906 $54,223 $55,567 $56,966 $58,391 $59,829 $61,335 $62,854 $64,414 $67,736 $69,429

Emergency Mgmt Coord 1
WCSO Lieutenant 2

32 EMS Deputy Director 1 $48,791 $50,029 $51,266 $52,557 $53,887 $55,231 $56,590 $58,001 $59,440 $60,932 $62,465 $64,011 $65,611 $67,264 $68,945 $70,666 $72,080
36 WCSO Chief Deputy 1 $53,067 $54,399 $55,756 $57,140 $58,566 $60,031 $61,510 $63,030 $64,643 $66,256 $67,883 $69,591 $71,352 $73,114 $74,955 $76,837 $78,758
37 EMS Director 1 $54,115 $55,487 $56,885 $58,310 $59,749 $61,255 $62,761 $64,321 $65,947 $67,574 $69,281 $70,989 $72,791 $74,579 $76,447 $78,370 $80,329
45 WCSO Sheriff (FN2) 1 $63,572 $65,184 $66,797 $68,478 $70,187 $71,936 $73,728 $75,602 $77,477 $79,406 $81,391 $83,430 $85,511 $87,661 $89,838 $92,112 $94,415

Refer to FNs on Non-Sheriff/Emergency Services Salary Schedule/Pay Tables

Grade Position Title FY25 #POS FY25 Step 1/A1 Step 2/A2 Step 3/B1 Step 4/B2 Step 5/B3 Step 6/C1 Step 7/C2 Step 8/C3 Step 9/D1 Step 10/D2 Step 11/D3 Step 12/E1 Step 13/E2 Step 14/E3 Step 15/F1 Step 16/F2 Step 17/F3
(YORE) Index: 54 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7&8 9&10 11&12 13&14 15&16 17&18 19&20 21&22 23&24 25&26

52FN1 Housekeeper  (FN1) 1 $25,411 $26,029 $26,675 $27,361 $28,020 $28,746 $29,444 $30,198 $30,923 $31,717 $32,497 $33,290 $34,137 $34,997 $35,871 $36,759 $37,678
Processing Assistant V 2 $27,051 $27,751 $28,410 $29,136 $29,848 $30,560 $31,327 $32,080 $32,873 $33,680 $34,540 $35,387 $36,328 $37,203 $38,089 $39,044 $40,026
IM CW I 0
Vehicle Operator I 5
Transportation Coordinator 1 $29,848 $30,560 $31,327 $32,080 $32,873 $33,680 $34,540 $35,387 $36,328 $37,203 $38,089 $39,044 $40,026 $41,021 $42,002 $42,997 $44,046
IM Caseworker II (FN2) 14
Info Processing Tech 2
Social Worker I 0
CS Enforcement Agent II 0 $32,873 $33,680 $34,540 $35,387 $36,328 $37,203 $38,089 $39,044 $40,026 $41,021 $42,002 $42,997 $44,046 $45,175 $46,304 $47,582 $48,711
IM Investigator II (FN2) 1
IM Caseworker III (FN2) 5

IM Supervisor II 2
Paralegal I 1
Transit Supervisor 1
Social Worker II (FN3) 5

69 Social Worker III (FN3) 5 $40,026 $41,021 $42,002 $42,997 $44,046 $45,175 $46,304 $47,582 $48,711 $49,827 $51,118 $52,382 $53,740 $55,003 $56,455 $57,812 $59,318
Social Worker Inv/Ass/Tr (FN3) 3
Social Worker Supervisor II 1
Computer System Administrator I 0-Frozen

73 Social Worker Supervisor III 3 $48,711 $49,827 $51,118 $52,382 $53,740 $55,003 $56,455 $57,812 $59,318 $60,824 $62,344 $63,890 $65,476 $67,090 $68,798 $70,451 $72,199
75 Social Services Deputy Director 1 $53,740 $55,003 $56,455 $57,812 $59,318 $60,824 $62,344 $63,890 $65,476 $67,090 $68,798 $70,451 $72,199 $74,054 $75,923 $77,792 $79,728
81 Social Services Director 1 $72,100 $73,833 $75,664 $77,609 $79,568 $81,525 $83,555 $85,654 $87,782 $89,966 $92,220 $94,516 $96,870 $99,307 $101,788 $104,309 $106,888

FN1: DSS Housekeeper step values are based on and pasted into the schedule from the non-DSS salary schedule's values for non-DSS housekeepers to create equity between all housekeeper positions
FN2: YORE value subject to work against reduction (refer to Supplemental DSS YORE Guidelines v20201216)
FN3: Subject to YORE reductions for Work Against/Prior Experience (refer to Supplemental DSS YORE Guidelines v20201216)
CS = Child Support
IM = Income Maintenance

$37,431 $38,345 $39,300 $40,254 $41,276 $42,351 $43,387 $44,449 $45,56015 $30,735 $31,474 $32,267 $33,088 $33,895 $34,755 $35,629 $36,516

FY25 Washington County 

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (DSS Only)

61

$26,460 $36,477

Revised/Effective: 7/16/2024

$58,122 $59,615 $61,080 $62,613 $64,186 $65,786 $67,426 $69,107 $70,834

67 $36,328 $37,203 $38,089 $39,044 $40,026 $41,021

65

$62,344

$42,002 $42,997 $44,046 $45,175 $46,304 $47,582

$48,711 $49,827 $51,118 $52,382

$48,711

$57,812 $59,318 $60,824

63

FY25 Washington County 

13 $28,570

$33,047

$49,827 $51,118 $52,382 $53,740

$33,169 $33,989

$38,291

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (Sheriff/Emergency Services Only)

$27,132 $27,818 $28,490 $39,248$33,855 $34,702 $35,562

$46,304 $47,582$42,002 $42,997 $44,046 $45,17570

$35,723

$53,740 $55,003 $56,455

$29,296 $30,009 $30,789

$29,216 $29,929 $30,694 $31,421 $32,215

$31,542 $32,336

31 $47,743 $48,939 $50,150 $51,400 $52,691 $54,022 $55,353 $56,724

$39,380 $40,334 $41,411 $42,446$34,822

Revised/Effective: 7/16/2024

$36,584 $37,498 $38,425

11 $37,391



 

Washington County Resolution 2024-022 Page 1 of 2 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-22 
 

PROCLAIMING DESIGNATION OF JULY AS PARK & 
RECREATION MONTH 

 
WHEREAS, parks and recreation is an integral part of communities throughout this country, 

including Washington County; and  
 

WHEREAS, parks and recreation promotes health and wellness, improving the physical and mental 
health of people who live near parks; and 
 

 WHEREAS, parks and recreation promotes time spent in nature, which positively impacts mental 
health by increasing cognitive performance and well-being, and alleviating illnesses such as depression, 
attention deficit disorders, and Alzheimer’s; and 
 
  WHEREAS, parks and recreation encourages physical activities by providing space for popular 
sports, hiking trails, swimming pools and many other activities designed to promote active lifestyles; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, parks and recreation is a leading provider of healthy meals, nutrition services and 
education; and  
 

WHEREAS, park and recreation programming and education activities, such as out-of-school 
time programming, youth sports and environmental education, are critical to childhood development; 
and  

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org  

 
JASON SQUIRES 

ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 
acm@washconc.org 

 
 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



 

Washington County Resolution 2024-022 Page 2 of 2 
 

WHEREAS, parks and recreation increases a community’s economic prosperity through 
increased property values, expansion of the local tax base, increased tourism, the attraction and retention 
of businesses, and crime reduction; and  
 

WHEREAS, parks and recreation is fundamental to the environmental well-being of our 
community; and   

 
WHEREAS, parks and recreation is essential and adaptable infrastructure that makes our 

communities resilient in the face of natural disasters and climate change; and   
 
WHEREAS, our parks and natural recreation areas ensure the ecological beauty of our 

community and provide a place for children and adults to connect with nature and recreate outdoors; and   
 

WHEREAS, the U.S. House of Representatives has designated July as Parks and Recreation 
Month; and 
 

WHEREAS, Washington County recognizes the benefits derived from parks and recreation 
resources.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the Washington County Board of 
Commissioners, that July is recognized as Park and Recreation Month in Washington County. 

 
ADOPTED this ___ day of _______2024. 
 
 

             
                                                   __________________________________________ 

Ann C. Keyes, Chair 
           Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

 



Washington County Resolution 2024-023  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

 

 
RESOLUTION 2024-023 

 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF  

A 2ND UTILITY RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT  
WITH DOMINION ENERGY  

TO INSTALL AND CONNECT ELECTRICAL UTILITIES  
AT THE NEWLY CONSTRUCTED PK-12 SCHOOL  

 
 

WHEREAS, Washington County owns certain property commonly identified and referred to by 
NC PIN 6788510563 which is located generally to the northeast of the corner of US 64 and NC Hwy 45; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, such property was acquired specifically for the construction of a new PK-12 school 

building presently under construction on said property; and 
 
WHEREAS, Virginia Electric and Power Company d/b/a/ Dominion Energy North Carolina has 

requested a Right of Way Agreement to construct, operate and maintain electrical utilities for the property, 
as more particularly described in the “Right of Way Agreement” “DENC ID No 62.23.0049” which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and 

 
WHEREAS, county staff have conferred with the Washington County School System and its 

General Contractor Metcon, Inc. regarding the need, location, and terms of the agreement requested by 
Dominion which is considered reasonably necessary for the successful completion of the construction 
project; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NCGS § 160A-273 a county has the authority to grant easements over, 

through, under, or across any county property; and 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org  

 
JASON SQUIRES 

ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 
acm@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Washington County Resolution 2024-023  Page 2 of 2 
 

WHEREAS, this Board is of the opinion that it is in the best interests of the citizens and residents 
of the County to grant such an easement. 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Washington County as follows: 
 

1. That the County Attorney is hereby authorized to negotiate with and make any modifications to 
the Agreement deemed reasonably necessary to protect, increase or improve the County’s legal 
rights and positions; and 
 

2. That with the County Attorney’s approval, the Chairman and/or County Manager, are hereby 
authorized to execute the attached Right of Way Agreement, as the same may be modified by the 
County Attorney; and 

 
3. That all acts and doings of officers, employees, and agents of the County, whether taken prior to, 

on, or after the date of this Resolution, that are in conformity with and in the furtherance of the 
purposes and interests of this Resolution as described above shall be, and the same hereby are, in 
all respects ratified, approved and confirmed. 
 

4. This resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 
 
 

ADOPTED this ___ day of __________2024. 
 
 
 

       __________________________________________ 
                                 Ann C. Keyes, Chair 

               Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

 











EXHIBIT “A” 

To a Right of Way Agreement DENC ID No(s). 62-23-0049 

Between Washington County (GRANTOR) and Dominion Energy North Carolina (GRANTEE) 

 

GRANTEE HEREBY AGREES to the following supplemental terms and conditions as a condition 
precedent to the Agreement’s validity and enforceability against GRANTOR: 

1. Due to the property being an active construction site for a new PK-12 School being built for 
Washington County by its Construction Manager At Risk: Metcon Inc., GRANTEE agrees to 
and shall coordinate the exact and final location/placement of the right of way boundaries 
(as otherwise generally depicted within the map attached to the Agreement) as well as any 
and all installment/construction activities with Metcon Inc. as GRANTOR’s agent. 
 

2. All parties are also hereby placed on notice that the Town of Plymouth currently owns and 
operates a sewage system lift station in the immediate vicinity of the right of way area 
depicted in Plat 62-23-0049 attached to this Right of Way Agreement.  Said lift station is 
anticipated to undergo potentially extensive renovation/replacement sometime in the near 
future.  Any rights granted under this Agreement shall be subject to any existing rights of 
way, easements, or any other matters of public record as recorded within the Washington 
County Register of Deeds Office.  Furthermore Grantee agrees not to exercise any rights 
under this Right of Way Agreement in any way that materially interferes with the current and 
ongoing operation and maintenance of the existing lift station referred to hereinabove.   





Washington County Resolution 2024-024 Page 1 of 2 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-24 
 

RECOGNIZING AND APPROVING OF THE OFFICIAL 
WASHINGTON COUNTY AMERICA 250 NC COMMITTEE 

 
A resolution of Washington County, North Carolina, supporting the America 250 NC Committee for 
the United States semi-quincentennial (AMERICA 250 NC). 

WHEREAS, Roy Cooper, Governor of North Carolina created AMERICA 250 NC to plan, 
encourage, develop, and coordinate the commemoration of the 250th anniversary of the United States 
and North Carolina’s integral role in that event and the role of its people on the nation’s past, present, 
and future: and 

WHEREAS, AMERICA 250 NC has a mission to engage ALL North Carolinians and ALL 100 
counties through their many signatures and officially recognized programs, projects, and events over the 
commemoration by inspiring future leaders and celebrating North Carolina’s 
contributions to the nation over the last 250 years; and 

WHEREAS, by adoption of America 250 NC’s mission, the Washington County Committee is 
officially formed to achieve the goals of America 250 NC. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Washington County hereby endorses 
AMERICA 250 NC and its mission; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Washington County officially establishes an AMERICA 
250 NC Committee made up of a diverse group of citizens to work with AMERICA 250 NC on any and 
all activities. The participants of the Washington County Committee will be strictly voluntary roles and 
there will be no compensation for participation. 

 

  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org  

 
JASON SQUIRES 

ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 
acm@washconc.org 

 
 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2024-024 Page 2 of 2 
 

 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be sent to the Washington County 
legislative delegation and the AMERICA 250 NC Committee. 

 
ADOPTED this ___ day of _______2024. 
 
 

             
                                                   __________________________________________ 

Ann C. Keyes, Chair 
           Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:   July 1, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:  July 1, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:        Department Information Update: Soil & Water, Mr. Chris Respess, Soil 

& Water Coordinator 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Respess will speak to the Board on the County’s Soil & Water department including 
any upcoming projects he may be working on. 
 
Also listed below are the Departments that have spoken to the Board this year.  If there is 
a particular Department you are interested in hearing about, please let the Clerk know so 
she can arrange for them to attend an upcoming meeting. A list of all Departments is on 
the second page of this statement. 
 
 
Month   Department   Director     
JAN    
FEB Sheriff’s Office  Arlo Norman 
MAR  Elections   Dora Bell 
APR 
MAY 
JUNE Senior Center   Renee’ Collier 
JULY Soil & Water   Chris Respess 
AUG Facilities   Ricky Young 
SEPT 
OCT   
NOV Cooperative Ext.  Rebecca Liverman 
DEC 
 



 
 

List of Departments 
 

  Planning/Inspections  HR 
  EM    Tax  
  EMS    Soil & Water 
  Elections   Utilities 
  Detention   DSS 
  Airport    Facilities 
  Landfill   TTA 
  Finance   Library 
  Register of Deeds  Soil & Water 
  MTW    Sheriff’s Office 
  Senior Center   IT 
  Recreation   E911 
  Human Resources 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   4 
 
       DATE:    July 1, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Tax Collector’s Annual Settlement Report, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax 

Administrator  
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
At the Board meeting, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Washington County Tax Administrator will 
give the Board the Tax Collector’s Annual Settlement Report. 
 
Ms. Wilkins will need a motion for you to approve the Order to Collect for FY24-25.  
See attached. 
 
 
 



ORDER 
 

FOR COLLECTION OF AD VALOREM TAXES 
 

Fiscal Year 2024 – 2025 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON 
 
TO:  SHERRI M. WILKINS   
 Tax Collector of Washington County 
 
 You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set 
forth in the tax records filed in the office of Washington County Tax Collector and in the 
tax receipts herein delivered to you, in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise 
therein set forth. Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien upon all real property of 
the respective taxpayers in the County of Washington, and this order shall be a full and 
sufficient authority to direct, require and enable you to levy on and sell any real or 
personal property of such taxpayers, for and on account thereon, in accordance with law.  
You are authorized to call upon the Sheriff of Washington County and his deputies to 
levy upon and sell personal property for unpaid taxes when you deem it to be advisable. 
 
 Witness my hand and official seal, this 1st day of July, 2024. 
 
 

 
 
             

Ann C. Keyes 
Chair 

 
 
             

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     July 1, 2024 
 
ITEM:   EMTOC Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Enclosed is a draft contract from the Architect for preliminary review by the Board.   
During the meeting staff will provide a general update on the ongoing progress of the EMTOC 
project including the following: 
 

- Site Selection Progress & Status 
- Proposed Design 
- Proposed Budget 
- Project Funding Status 

o Grant Funds 
o Local Funds 

 
- Design Contract (Specific concerns or questions about the terms and conditions of this 

contract should be discussed in closed session under Attorney Client Privilege.) 
- Any other/additional information or Q&A 

 
Staff anticipates recommending  to the Board at the conclusion of this item or any closed session 
held to discuss the terms of the design contract, that the Board vote: 

1. To approve the proposed design in concept, and  
2. To approve entering into the proposed design contract subject to any additional 

modifications or amendments requested by the Board or recommended to be made in 
County’s favor by the County Attorney prior to its execution. 

 
 
See attachments. 





























































EMS
EOC

APPROX.
146'-6"

APPROX.152'-0"

WASHINGTON COUNTY EOC/EMS SCALE: 1" = 100'-0"
DATE : 03-12-2024

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN - LOT 6777.06-47-8856





 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
       ITEM NO: 6 
 
       DATE:     July 1, 2024 
 
ITEM:       Pocosin Charter School Facilities/Funding Request, Commissioner 

Phelps 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Commissioner Phelps would like to discuss the attached email that each of you received from 
Ms. Constance Davenport, Vice Chair of Pocosin Innovative Charter School.  



From: Constance Davenport <cdavenport@pocosininnovative.org>  
Sent: Friday, June 21, 2024 2:43 PM 
To: Julie Bennett <jbennett@washconc.org> 
Subject: Fwd: Creswell Campus 
 
Dear County Commissioners, 
 
My name is Constance Davenport, and I am the Vice Chair of Pocosin Innovative Charter.  I am 
reaching out to you in the matter of the Creswell school campus.  
 
Pocosin Innovative Charter is interested in purchasing the Creswell Campus. This is the second 
time we have inquired about the campus. The first time we went to a County Commissioners 
meeting and made a verbal request.   
 
PIC is a Kindergarten through 8th grade North Carolina Public school. Our Charter school provides 
instruction to students residing from not only Washington County, but Tyrrell, Hyde, Chowan, 
Bertie, Martin, and Beaufort counties. This is great for Creswell.  As you know our small town has 
declined since the new highway was put in. We lost restaurants, gas stations and other small 
businesses. Charter schools are known for building back communities.  Pocosin Innovative Charter 
is doing just that. Creswell has new restaurants, a coffee Shop, and other small businesses.  The 
parents of and the students who attend our school are helping to support those businesses. Having 
a school in Creswell is a major benefit to our town water department.  
 
Our school has thrived and is growing to the point that we are now in need of more space. We are a 
hands-on Agricultural school so we need space for planting and classroom space for learning. We 
would love to be able to keep the Creswell campus as a thriving center for student growth and 
learning for which it was originally intended 
 
We understand that the Washington County commissioners give a $600 bonus for every certified 
teacher in the Washington County Schools system. The teachers at Pocosin Innovative Charter also 
teach children from Washington County and would benefit from the bonus other teachers of 
Washington County students receive. We all know teachers take out of their own pockets to put 
back into their classrooms all too often.  Pocosin Innovative Charter is a North Carolina Public 
school and is designated as Public School 94A. The number 94 denotes that it is a Washington 
County school. 
 
Pocosin is dedicated to not only serving students, but our community as well.  Please consider 
allowing us to purchase the Creswell School campus so that we may continue to educate students 
and help our community grow and thrive.  
 
On behalf of the Pocosin Innovative Charter Board of Directors I would like to thank each of you for 
your consideration in this matter and your commitment to our county and the education of its 
students. 
 
Constance Davenport  
Vice Chair 
Pocosin Innovative Charter  

mailto:cdavenport@pocosininnovative.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:  July 5, 2022 
 
 
ITEM:       Designation of Voting Delegate for NCACC Annual Conference, Ms. 

Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
The NCACC asks the Board each year to nominate a Conference attendee to be the voting 
delegate on behalf of Washington County at the NCACC Annual Conference. This year’s 
conference is being held August 8-11, 2024 in Forsyth County (Winston-Salem). 
 
The Clerk will need a motion to nominate the Washington County Voting Delegate for the 2024 
NCACC Annual Conference. 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:  July 1, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:      Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
At the June 3, 2024 Commissioners’ meeting, the Board approved the JCPC members 
that were presented.  During discussion, the Board agreed to come back to the July 1 
meeting with names to fill the empty positions on that Board. 
 
Attached is the previously approved list for your reference. 
 
 
 



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Agreement
Form structure last revised August 2020
NC Department of Public Safety

G.S. 143B-853 allows for a 2-year funding cycle for programs that meet the requirements of the statute and have been 
awarded funds in a prior funding cycle. Indicate below if the JCPC plans to allow for a 1-year or 2-year funding cycle.

1-Year Funding: FY 2024-2025

Membership
A. Have the members of the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council been appointed by county commissioners? Yes
B. Are members appointed for two-year terms and are those terms staggered? Yes
C. Is membership reflective of social-economic and racial diversity of the community? Yes
D. Does the membership of the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council reflect the required positions as provided by    

N.C.G.S. §143B-846? Yes
If not, which positions are vacant and why?

The position of a Business Community member has been open, and a person is interested to fill that position. Also, 2 
persons under the age of 21 or 1 person under age 21 and 1 person from the public representing the interests of families 
of at-risk juveniles are currently open on the Board.  Those position are trying to be filled as well. The Juvenile Defense 
Attorney position has not been able to be filled in several years.

Organization
A. Does the JCPC have written Bylaws? Yes
B. Bylaws are On file
C. Bylaws contain Conflict of Interest section per JCPC policy and procedure. Yes
D. Does the JCPC have written policies and procedures for funding and review? Yes
E. These policies and procedures On file
F. Does the JCPC have officers and are they elected annually? Yes

Meetings
A. JCPC meetings are considered open and public notice of meetings is provided. Yes
B. Is a quorum defined as the majority of membership and required to be present in order to conduct business at 

JCPC meetings? Yes
C. Does the JCPC meet six (6) times a year at a minimum? Yes
D. Are minutes taken at all official meetings? Yes
E. Are minutes distributed prior to or during subsequent meetings? Yes

Planning
A. Does the JCPC conduct a biennial planning process which includes a needs assessment, monitoring of 

programs and funding allocation process? Yes
B. Is this Biennial Plan presented to the Board of County Commissioners and to DPS? Yes
C. Is the Funding Plan approved by the full council and submitted to Commissioners for their approval? Yes

Public Awareness
A. Does the JCPC communicate the availability of funds to all public and private non-profit agencies which serve 

children or their families and to other interested community members? Yes
RFP, Distribution List, and Advertisement attached

B. Does the JCPC complete a biennial needs assessment and make that information available to agencies which 
serve children or their families, and to interested community members? Yes

No Overdue Tax Debt



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Agreement
Form structure last revised August 2020
NC Department of Public Safety

A. As recipient of the county DPS JCPC allocation, does the County certify that it has no overdue tax debts, as 
defined by N.C.G.S. §105-243.1, at the Federal, State, or local level? Yes

Briefly outline the plan for correcting any areas of standards non-compliance.
Working on filling vacant positions on JCPC membership.



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Agreement
Form structure last revised August 2020
NC Department of Public Safety

Instructions: N.C.G.S. § 143B-846 specifies suggested members be appointed by county commissioners to serve on local 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Councils.  In certain categories, a designee may be appointed to serve.  Please indicate the 
person appointed to serve in each category and his/her title.  Indicate appointed members who are designees for named 
positions.  Indicate race and gender for all appointments.

Specified Members Name Title Designee Race Gender

1) School Superintendent or designee Will White Superintendent White Male

2) Chief of Police or designee Willie Williams Chief of Police Black or African-
American

Male

3) Local Sheriff or designee Johnny Barnes Sheriff White Male

4) District Attorney or designee Seth Edwards District Attorney White Male

5) Chief Court Counselor or designee Stacy Huss Chief Court Counselor White Female

6) Director, Local Management Entity/
Managed Care Organization (LME/MCO), or 
designee

    

7) Director DSS or designee Clifton Hardison Director White Male

8) County Manager or designee Curtis Potter County Manager White Male

9) Substance Abuse Professional     

10) Member of Faith Community Harry White Minister Black or African-
American

Male

11) County Commissioner Julius Walker Commissioner Black or African-
American

Male

12) A Person Under the Age of 21 Ni'chelle Caldwell Student Black or African-
American

Female

13) A Person Under the Age of 21, or a member 
of the public representing the interests of 
families of at-risk juveniles

    

14) Juvenile Defense Attorney     

15) Chief District Judge or designee Regina Parker Chief District Court 
Judge

Black or African-
American

Female

16) Member of Business Community Diane White Local Business 
Representative

Black or African-
American

Female

17) Local Health Director or designee     

18) Rep. United Way/other non-profit Kay Overton Director-Partnership 
for Children

White Female

19) Representative/Parks and Rec Randy Fulford Parks and Recreation Black or African-
American

Male

20) County Commissioner appointee Dina Brown School Counselor Black or African-
American

Female

21) County Commissioner appointee Doretha Garrett Center for Family 
Violence

Black or African-
American

Female

22) County Commissioner appointee Lucas Denny Supervisor Juvenile 
Justice

Black or African-
American

Male

23) County Commissioner appointee Missy Dixon Fianance Director 
Washington County

White Female



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Agreement
Form structure last revised August 2020
NC Department of Public Safety

Specified Members Name Title Designee Race Gender

24) County Commissioner appointee Stephanie Simpson Police Department Black or African-
American

Female

25) County Commissioner appointee Tina Singleton Juvenile Court 
Counselor

White Female

26) County Commissioner appointee     



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  9 
 
       DATE:  July 1, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the enclosed budget amendments/transfers 
to the Board for approval/disapproval and other information. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 



































































































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
 
       DATE:     July 1, 2024 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, or Staff 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a.  NCACC Legislative Goals for FY24-25 
Mr. Potter will speak with the Commissioners about coming up with 
legislative goals that the NCACC can assist counties with FY24-25.  Attached 
is a flowchart of the process.   
 
See attached. 

 
 

 Department Head Reports from June 2024—see attached 
 

 Statistics Reports—see attached 
 
 

 
 

 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   11 
   
       DATE:     July 1, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Mr. Potter would like to have the following Closed Sessions pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 
 





 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
July 1, 2024 

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
Recreation is good.  We came in second place in the state at the State Games this year.  We are 
playing flag football on Saturday, basketball camps Tue, Wed, Thurs from 10:00 to 12:30 and 
signing up for T football. 
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
Filing has started for Soil and Water Conservation, and no one has filed as of today. I have 
completed sorting ballots, and the numbers came out even. There is nothing else to report at this 
time. 
 
 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
 

No report submitted. 

 
Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services – sending tax 
information, verifying balances due, completing tax certifications, adding attorney 
fees and/or suit cost.  

2. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling value adjustments, 
refunds, releases, address corrections and general questions regarding motor 
vehicles.  

3. Continue to verify PINs for Deed filings, process Tax Certifications and assign 
addresses in GIS – we had several address requests this month. We have a variation 
of these daily.  

4. Continue to work with the landfill. They call us for verification of ownership 
of a property, for example, there is a new owner for a property and that person 
is going into the landfill but before they are allowed to dump their debris or 
trash, the landfill calls us to make sure they own the property at the address 
they have given.  

5. The Statistical report was submitted. 
6. Christal Watkins processed the refunds after the Commissioners approval for 

them.  
7. Sent mapping updates to Joe with Atlas. Had correspondence with Joe several 

times for assistance with mapping requests.  
8. Emailed our contact with Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC regarding their monthly 

payment. Requested that they pay before June 28th. If they wait and pay on 
Friday we won’t get the payment until Monday, July 1st.  Also requested a 
status update on their other delinquent accounts – VL Group A, LLC and 
Plymouth Solar, LLC.  

9. Overall, we remain busy with the data processing of Abstracts, Business 
Personal Property listings and transfers.  

10. The data entry has been completed for the new construction reviews. Letters 
are being prepared for the taxpayers; they will have 30 days to appeal the 
values.  

11. Received debt set-off payments this month. 
12. Hollie and I sat in on an online seminar regarding Sales Ratio, Public Utility 

companies and TR-1/TR2 reporting.  
13. Hollie Respass has moved to her office.  
14. Hollie completed the data entry for the properties in the limits of the Town of 

Roper so their solid waste  
15. Darlene Harrison will be moving over to the main office for the tax clerk 

position and Christal Watkins will be moving to the office Darlene is moving 
from. Darlene Fikes is needed to assist with the computers.  

16. Darlene Fikes and I will be speaking with Teresa, our contracted programmer 
to discuss the conversion of our current software to Keystone. There is a Zoom 
call planned for Monday, June 24th with us, Teresa, and the representatives 
from Keystone.  

17. On June 28th, I will process our month-end closeout and then Darlene Fikes 
and I will begin the fiscal year-end closeout and new fiscal year setup.  

 



 

Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 
Permits issued   20 
Demolition permits                   2 
Inspections Completed 40 
Plan reviews     2           Roper Fire Department upgrade 
                                                               Royal Farms revised suppression system 
 
Consultations:  Dennis Brown, Fourth Street issue 
   Mrs. Curtis @ FEMA Region 4 
   Wayne Pittman re: revitalization of old downtown buildings 
   Surveyor re: subdivision rules for sale of parcels in county 
   Knox  Box with Royal Farms/Plymouth Fire Department/EM 
   Lisa Cantrell for PK classroom revision in Roper 
   Landowner re: rezoning and dividing property on US 64 E 
 
Continue to work with third party inspections for WC School project; Dollar General project 
Continue to review Fire Watch at Washington Regional Medical Center 
Continue to work on CRS documentation for September 10 on-site audit 
Reviewed map/plat for Skinnersville project  
June 3 – presented Nixon Special Use application to Commissioners 
June 4, 12 – out for medical  
June 5 – Department Head meeting 
June 5, 13, 21, 26 -  Staff vacation   
June 7,14,18, 28   - out of office for Contract with Tyrrell County (Town of Columbia included)   
June 10, 11, 13, 14 - HurreVac Class (with EM)   
June 19th Holiday – thank you 
June 20 – Planning Board meets at 1:00pm Roper 
June 24, 25, 26 – Floodplain Manager’s Conference (ConEd) online 
 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
May 8th-DH Meeting 
May 10th -Wind/Storm Damage-2 calls from Dispatch regarding damage 
May 13th-16th -NC Land Search Training/EM-1/  
May 13th-Log truck overturned/Fuel spill-cleanup 
May 15th-Chiefs Meeting@ Roper VFD 
May 21-Sheltering Sessions/C Barnes 
May23rd-CAT Team Meeting/Plymouth 
May--Multiple Days-Planning meetings and equip. Prep for Bear Fest 
May 30th-Shelter Training Vernon James Center EM-1/C Barnes 
May 31st- Black Bear Festival setup and start all day till 9pm 
June 1st- Nat’l Black Bear Festival 7:00am to 12 pm 
June 5th- DH Meeting/ Log Truck Fire Anne St. 



 

June 6th Accident with 18 wheeler and service truck-30 Foot Canal/Mutual aid to Hyde 
ref.Wildfire 
June 7th- HazMat/Diesel Spill-Duck Thru 
June 9th- Callback for Dispatch Center/Communications issue 
June 10th- Bear Fest Wrap up Meeting/AAR 
June 11th-Safety Committee Meeting 
June 13th- Accident response 
June 16th- Call for Search of capsized boat with person appeared to be waving for help Volunteer 
boats/Wildlife (2 boats/2 officers)/Marine Patrol (2 boats 4 officers)EM-1, Sheriff’s Dept(3 
officers) 1 USCG boat w/crew and 1 USCG Blackhawk w/Crew 
June 17th – Accident between Dump Truck and Tractor on US 64 
 
  
Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 
1. Inspected aquatic weed treatment areas that have been completed and documented results 

(Lewis Canal, B-Canal, Weston Canal) 
2.  
3. Documented upcoming drainage projects for 2024-2025 budget 

Aquatic Weed Spraying 
Beaver Control Areas of Interest 
Snagging and Clearing of Waterways 
 

4. Inspected Conaby Creek, Welches Creek, Kendricks Creek, Scuppernong River, Maul 
Creek, Moccasin Canal, A Canal, Albemarle Canal, and Main Canal. 

 
5. Participated as a judge for 4-H Public Speaking event on June 21, 2024. 

 
6. Gathered info about all the drainage districts in Washington County and intend to meet with 

all the boards on August 6, 2024, at the Vernon James Center to discuss future plans on 
drainage within districts and the outlets they drain into. 

 
7. Began the process of creating a training program that educates producers and staff on no-till 

operations and different equipment setups depending on scenarios such as soil type and 
elevation. 

 
8. Completed all required uploads to State website for Cost Share Programs before the 

deadline. (June 30, 2024) 
 
 
Landfill 
Vacant 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
 



 

Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Harley Spruill 
 
No report. 
 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 
VoIP: Working with Missy on credit of $7,397.99 we should have received from VC3. Gather all 
documentation on the credit and send email requesting to resolved by June 30th. VC3 responded & 
will apply April, May & June invoices to the credit with remaining balance sent in a check. Waiting 
for a response if part ordered can also be applied to credit. 
 
IT Move: Server, core switches, patch panel, firewall and onsite backups remain on the first floor 
Tax office.  
 
Mediacom: Received notification stating changes for Courtesy Accounts using tv service. 
Mediacom will supply digital receiver and local tv at no charge, but those continuing to use 
variety tv there will be a charge. Send documentation I have on current accounts to Account 
Manager to review and verify. Once verified I will get with Department Heads to determine 
needs and how to move forward. 
 
Tax Office Software Migration: Working with Cox & Company & Sherri on libraries & files. 
 
FY24 911 Grant: Equipment has been ordered by Mobile Communications and waiting for delivery. 
Received status from Mobile Communications. See status at the bottom of this report.  
 
FY24 PSAP Assessment: PSAP Assessment took place June 20. Of 92 items 10 were found 
deficient. Deficiencies – one on the generator, five on a centralized battery, one on the 911 Standard 
Operating Procedures, one on documented issues, and two on QA. The County has 90 days to 
correct these deficiencies.  
 
 
--Update digital doors in Water Dept & Finance Storage room. 
--Request status of Motorola equipment for 911 Grant report. 
--Attend mandatory 2024 PSAP Grant Financial Webinar. 
--Setup Dymo Label Writer for Laurie. 
--Check info on laptop battery for Julie & email info to her. 
--Work with VC3 to resolve issues with cordless phone at Recreation Center. 
--Attend June 2024 NCDIT Town Hall. 
--Complete setup of O365 for Hollie Respass & Jerrian Arnold. 
--Create account in O365 for CustomerServiceRep1. Create Profile & desktop. 
--Create account in O365 for kchesson. Troubleshoot issue. 
--Meet FirstNet at Landfill & resolve internet issues. 
--Reviewing end of year items with Missy & verifying invoices have been received. 
--Review O365 users & update documentation. 
--Review Facility items for PSAP Assessment with Ricky. 



 

--Document all ups’s for PSAP Assessment & review all Assessment documentation with  
   Harley. 
--Give LandRecords access to TaxShare. 
--Correct issue with Elite keyboard on LandRecords pc. 
--Setup 5 laptops for Emergency Management. 
--Work with Cox & Company & Sherri on libraries & files in Elite. 
--Write program for Sherri to print active accounts only. 
--Start working on invoices that need to be paid. 
--Attend Departmental Meeting. 
--Attend County Manager group meetings. 
--Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
--Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
--Verify CopyPro invoice for Finance. 
--Complete Weekly Activity Report for County Manager 
--Reconcile Budget Statement. 
 
  
Senior Center 
Renee’ Collier 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Surplus 
Debbie Knieper 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Airport 
Mary Moscato 
 
Project Update:  
• Airfield Lighting Improvement Project 

o The project is actively progressing. Currently about 30% complete. Some of the lights (PAPI 
& REIL) are back ordered due to logistical delays and not expected until August.   

• RPZ Obstruction 
o This project is currently in the design phase. 

• AWOS 
o This project continues to work its way through the DOA & FAA approval process. We 

applied for AIG funds and are pending  notification.  
 

Other Activities: 
• Updated the NOTAM Authorization Form to include Knapp and Mary.  
• Registered for the Wildlife Mitigation Course at Rocky Mount Regional Airport. 
• Responded to the NCDEQ Stormwater Permit inspection citation and continue to work on the 

issues.  
• Received four (4) proposals to the RFQ for the Engineering Master Contract. Scheduled the review 

committee to meet in early July to rate and rank the proposals.  
• Completed a farming agreement to plant and harvest hayseed. This will save on equipment 

maintenance, fuel and labor costs.  
 

Revenue Update: 
• June Fuel Sales (as of 6/21):  $3,483.41 
• Total fuel sales year-to-date:  $62,150.91 
• Hangar Leases:  Successfully collected 100% of our hangar lease payments, totaling $15,600.  

Note: we will start collecting lease payments for FY25 in July.   
 
                         
Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Unfinished Business: 

• Cleaning HVAC coils. 
• Weekly and monthly PM’s. 

 
Maintenance: 

• Completed 47 work orders. 
• Completed the walls at DSS. 

 
Upcoming Projects: 

• Replace all outside lights at the Library. 
• Pressure wash and paint the steps at the Courthouse. 
• Replace the boards on the CMO handicap ramp. 
• Install exhaust fans in the Water Department and Courthouse vending  

machine area. 



 

Register of Deeds 
Timothy Esolen 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 22-23  (in 
million gallons)

7.707 7.855 8 6.766 7.766 7.706 6.657 6.814 7.014 6.519 7.56 8.956 90

Water Billed  FY 23-24 (in 
million gallons)

8.08 8.93 7.196 6.896 7.547 6.94 7.77 6.19 6.16 8.23 74

Base Charges 70,623$      71,143$     71,210$     71,106$    71,262$   71,106$   71,158$   71,153$    71,439$    71,439$      711,639$        
Consumption Charges 52,884$      62,621$     43,524$     40,859$    47,242$   40,300$   50,921$   33,618$    32,409$    55,588$      459,966$        
Reconnecton Charges 1,645$        1,505$        1,575$        1,505$      1,435$     1,575$     875$         2,660$       1,960$      1,715$        16,450$          

 Number of Abatements 13 16 7 20 15 13 7 15 6 112                  

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 

1,161.50$  1,268$        1,814$        2,249$      3,036$     956$         2,893$     1,658$       650$          15,683.00$    

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

19.9 16.22 15.6 15.7 15 15 15 14 15 15 15.600 172.090

Number of Customers 2660 2680 2677 2673 2679 2673 2675 2671 2682 2682 26,752
New taps 5 3 3 3 4 0 0 0 1 1 20
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$    4,844.65$    4,844.65$  $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 4,844.65$   4,844.65$   4,844.65$    48,446.50$            

0

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 22-23  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 23-24 (in million gallons)



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals
WC Dispatched 164 158 141 150 142 169 133 134 145 129 171 1636
WC Transported 109 124 113 113 104 112 106 98 101 94 110 1184
WC Refusals 55 34 28 37 38 57 27 36 44 35 61 452

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 0 1 3 1 1 0 1 2 0 0 1 10
SNF to Doctors 112 146 137 132 113 111 153 126 114 118 106 1368
Hospital Discharges 7 8 8 8 8 10 9 7 6 10 13 94
EMS Back Up 0 5 3 5 5 2 5 1 2 10 5 43

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals
TC Dispatched 49 51 63 50 74 55 68 62 50 62 72 656
TC Transported 31 41 54 38 55 39 51 49 36 42 59 495
TC Refusals 18 10 9 12 19 16 17 13 14 20 13 161

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HC Transported 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY23-24

Washington County

Tyrrell County

EMS Dispatches for FY23-24
(W hi t  T ll & H d  C ti )



36%

26%

10%

14%

11%
3%0%0%0%

   
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 44.54 44.29 89.90 79.91 47.12 61.53 80.70 72.12 55.02 55.06 74.28 704.47
Inert Debris 41.06 31.47 1.99 28.62 4.39 22.25 0 102.64 290.52 24.45 24.01 571.40
Scrap Metal 1.06 2.13 1.24 1.02 0.81 1.12 1.59 0.93 1.46 1.12 0.58 13.06
C&D 96.28 84.36 29.31 43.11 26.52 25.01 54.47 231.12 61.52 106.26 68.96 826.92
Tires 12 4.59 1.79 6.87 2.8 5.76 5.55 4.59 1.49 4.13 7.70 57.27

LANDFILL  (in tons)
FY 23-24

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $3,495.00 3,800.46$      3,663.00$   6,607.00$   1,220.00$   2,891.00$   2,111.00$   2,812.50$   7,815.00$   5,071.40$   1,458.00$   1,525.00$         $42,469.36
Zoning 150.00$    75.00$         275.00$       50.00$         225.00$       25.00$         75.00$         300.00$       175.00$       150.00$       25.00$         $1,525.00

Reinspect 300.00$    75.00$         150.00$       725.00$       275.00$       -$             150.00$       550.00$       275.00$       250.00$       225.00$       300.00$      $3,275.00
SWUF $0.00 -$             406.25$       62.50$         -$             -$             656.25$       -$             -$             218.75$       167.50$      $1,511.25

HO Recovery 
Fee $0.00 20.00$         10.00$         -$             -$             -$             -$             20.00$         -$             -$            $50.00

Total $3,945.00 $3,970.46 $4,504.25 $7,444.50 $1,720.00 $2,916.00 $2,336.00 $4,318.75 $8,265.00 $5,491.40 $1,926.75 $1,992.50 $48,830.61

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY23-24

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$3,000.00

$4,000.00

$5,000.00

$6,000.00

$7,000.00

$8,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY23-24) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

87%

3%
7% 3%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning
Reinspect SWUF
HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                      
Current Year Tax 1,292,918.24$    1,841,875.98$    327,668.62$      319,355.85$    260,168.47$    1,568,567.71$     826,014.32$      107,468.28$    101,027.01$    249,698.07$    25,656.44$    6,920,418.99$                     
Current Yr Discount (25,476.78)$        (21,654.99)$        (526.19)$            4.54$               2.59$               -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               (47,650.83)$                         
Current Year Penalty 787.65$               2,771.65$            1,056.76$           202.13$           200.81$           3,519.82$            1,665.58$           816.67$           299.47$           569.58$           88.55$           11,978.67$                          
Current Year Interest -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 2.59$                   3,635.25$           3,478.73$        3,688.36$        19,609.50$      1,840.33$      32,254.76$                          

Watershed Tax Current Yr 15,097.27$          21,172.24$         3,795.04$           3,706.23$        3,018.07$        18,412.19$          9,821.04$           1,271.09$        1,110.62$        5,495.85$        280.50$         83,180.14$                          
Watershed Discount (302.62)$              (250.79)$             (5.81)$                 -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               (559.22)$                              
Watershed Penalty 9.16$                   31.98$                 12.61$                1.77$               2.13$               41.86$                 11.63$                9.45$               3.54$               6.65$               1.25$             132.03$                                
Watershed Interest -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                     41.34$                37.33$             39.04$             299.67$           339.06$         756.44$                                
Prior Year Tax 18,352.43$          36,799.48$         14,030.87$        11,746.94$      13,152.62$      30,868.77$          38,677.46$        15,816.63$      16,594.89$      17,825.54$      9,670.87$      223,536.50$                        
Prior Year Penalty 68.78$                 417.40$               11.30$                11.32$             8.98$               56.62$                 128.45$              18.08$             35.92$             373.62$           104.93$         1,235.40$                            
Prior Year Interest 2,722.59$            9,883.52$            1,948.27$           1,603.26$        2,701.76$        7,245.98$            7,520.79$           3,937.21$        4,139.65$        5,820.03$        3,183.84$      50,706.90$                          
Prior Year Watershed 149.83$               462.06$               82.27$                107.42$           120.87$           178.34$               610.30$              191.08$           100.63$           18,419.66$      72.32$           20,494.78$                          
Prior Year WS Penalty 0.71$                   4.84$                   0.13$                  0.36$               0.24$               0.67$                   1.18$                  0.75$               0.44$               1,823.93$        1.04$             1,834.29$                            
Prior Year WS Interest 170.91$               532.50$               138.46$              148.78$           136.30$           255.79$               333.98$              226.01$           194.63$           3,002.32$        170.03$         5,309.71$                            
Bad Checks -$                     -$                     -$                    (173.27)$          -$                 -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               (173.27)$                              
Prepayments 500.95$               5,956.02$            2,762.60$           2,006.00$        2,759.13$        2,763.67$            8,484.73$           7,213.74$        8,714.68$        7,676.18$        9572.78 58,410.48$                          

TOTAL 1,304,999.12$    1,898,001.89$    350,974.93$      338,721.33$   282,271.97$   1,631,914.01$     896,946.05$      140,485.05$   135,948.88$   330,620.60$   50,981.94$    -$  7,361,865.77$                     

Initiated 0
Amount -$                                      
Satisfied/Cancelled 0
Amount -$                                      

*

87966.77 85,307.73$         77,214.79$        74,163.68$      66,628.89$      74,298.54$          83,382.60 80,066.76 97,719.73$      91,628.37 81,600.23$    812,011.32$                        

 -$                                      
Billed Current Yr 1,315,210.00$    1,315,210.00$                     
Collected All Years 273,626.13$        265,537.20$       72,876.02$        61,864.46$      60,475.94$      174,442.14$        119,465.51$      33,731.11$      52,399.37$      47,788.02$      13,948.40$    1,176,154.30$                     
Bad Checks -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$                                      

TOTAL 273,626.13$        265,537.20$       72,876.02$        61,864.46$      60,475.94$      174,442.14$        119,465.51$      33,731.11$      52,399.37$      47,788.02$      13,948.40$    -$  1,176,154.30$                     

Billed Current Yr 6,583.70$            -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$               -$                                      
Collected Current Yr 1,055.97$            1,825.37$            170.37$              618.59$           145.76$           1,604.27$            1,033.69$           -$                 0.35$               5.90$               -$               6,460.27$                            
TOTAL 1,055.97$            1,825.37$            170.37$              618.59$           145.76$           1,604.27$            1,033.69$           -$                 0.35$               5.90$               -$               6,460.27$                            

Collected Current Yr 13,576.76$          27,943.80$         16,688.19$        21,036.21$      29,251.70$      26,519.82$          47,338.15$        1,358.21$        683.66$           1,720.24$        $214.67 186,331.41$                        

Creswell Levy 7,708.14$            19,091.33$         3,106.76$           1,908.22$        3,863.21$        41,771.70$          22,576.08$        319.87$           1,094.96$        551.69$           998.65 102,990.61$                        

1,600,966.12$    2,297,707.32$    521,031.06$      498,312.49$   442,637.47$   1,950,550.48$     1,170,742.08$   255,961.00$   287,846.95$   472,314.82$   147,743.89$  -$  9,645,813.68$                     

Tax and Tag Collections
Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX
FY23-24

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Eddie Smith Drainage

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees

Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments TOTAL



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 8108
Unduplicated Attendees 69 79 75 83 71 65 80 81 87 78 73 841
Total Guest Check-Ins 48 16 27 10
New Particpants 0 5 1 5 5 11 2 1 1 4 35
Center-Sponsored Events 367 213 292 157 295 218 338 435 306 334 418 3373
Special Events 99 63 112 147 142 145 127 194 156 214 178 1577
Caregiver's Support Groups 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
Exercise Room 36 40 25 38 26 24 40 50 45 33 32 389
Fitness Workout 13 15 5 6 6 5 5 14 8 12 5 94
Yoga 3 3 1 1 3 2 3 9 7 5 9 46
Chair Exercise 65 64 56 67 51 14 35 71 57 50 55 585
Line Dance 45 49 42 38 28 11 35 44 42 45 17 396
Crafts With Sandra Lee 15 20 13 16 14 12 15 12 12 13 14 156
Drop-in Activities 10 35 36 27 27 29 38 31 32 25 18 308
Pickle Ball 24 10 2 3 2 17 17 28 7 4 0 114
Sewing with Geraldine 19 17 21 17 11 18 6 10 15 10 8 152
Computer Wi-fi 5 11 0 0 1 0 2 6 2 4 6 37

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 761 865 811 962 777 620 749 1037 954 976 0 0 8512
Congregate Meals Served 162 190 165 195 152 139 142 312 299 293 2049
Home-Delivered Meals Served 599 675 646 767 625 481 607 725 655 683 6463
Congregate Meals-Pick-Ups 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA 344.00$  232.00$  437.74$   604.62$  378.31$  464.52$ 499.00$  689.84$   447.75$   130.00$ 95.50$ -$  4,323.28$  
Congregate Meals 46.00$    52.00$     69.00$     44.62$     53.31$     -$        44.00$     $156.30 $96.25 561.48$      
Home-Delivered Meals 140.00$  90.00$     262.00$   450.00$  220.00$  380.00$ 365.00$  240.00$  215.00$   2,362.00$  
Activity Fees 155.00$  90.00$     105.00$   110.00$  105.00$  75.00$   60.00$     75.00$     90.00$     90.00$    60.00$ 1,015.00$  
Donations 3.00$       -$         1.74$        9.52$      30.00$     218.54$   46.50$     40.00$    35.50$ 384.80$      

SENIOR CENTER
FY23-24

700

800

Meals Served (FY23-24) Senior Center Activities (FY23-24) Total Guest Check-Ins

Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events



0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

47%

22%

0%
5%

1%1%

8%

5%
2%

4% 2%2%1%

 

Caregiver's Support Groups

Exercise Room

Fitness Workout

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Line Dance

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Drop-in Activities

Pickle Ball

Sewing with Geraldine

Computer Wi-fi



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

55 45 53 51 36 48 42 40 57 51 49 9 536 536
Male 29 26 33 30 21 29 25 26 37 33 30 319
Female 11 5 9 5 2 6 8 7 14 12 14 9 102
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 7
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

13 13 10 15 12 12 8 7 6 6 5 107 107
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY23-24

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

421

0

1

0

0

0

7

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

SMCP

98%

0%0%0%0%0%2%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY23-24)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 1045 973 880 993 852 896 882 873 989 943 0 0 9326
Law Enforcement 786 765 697 817 701 678 693 662 688 663 7150

Animal Control 78 39 25 10 0 16 42 59 69 59 397
EMS 181 169 158 166 151 202 147 152 170 154 1650

Reported Incidents 28 28
Total Arrests 5 0 2 5 0 4 6 10 3 8 13 0 56

Misdemeanor Arrests 2 1 2 0 3 4 3 3 5 4 27
Felony Arrests 3 1 3 0 1 2 7 0 3 9 29

Total Papers Served 40 0 50 59 37 36 41 19 30 40 40 0 392
Criminal Papers Served 7 15 6 0 7 3 1 2 37 4 82

Civil Papers Served 33 35 53 37 29 38 18 28 3 36 310
Total Papers Outstanding 31 0 46 12 21 17 25 28 17 35 21 0 253
Criminal Papers Outstanding 16 32 6 6 2 0 0 2 11 13 88

Civil Papers Outstanding 15 14 6 15 15 25 28 15 24 8 165
Gun Permits Issued  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0
Conceals Pending  N/A 7 7

Concealed Permits Issued  N/A 16 10 12 14 10 62

SHERRIFF
FY23-24

4%

18%

Dispatched Calls (FY23-24)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS



78%

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

YTD TOTALS

28 27 29

82

310

88

165

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY23-2)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 398 357 349 397 406 409 332 0 0 0 0 0 2648
Plymouth Police Department 316 287 275 329 340 324 277 2148

Public Works 9 12 13 4 9 13 0 60
EMS Calls in the Town of Plymouth 73 58 61 64 57 72 55 440

Plymouth Fire Department 17 18 26 20 19 24 18

SHERRIFF
FY23-24



DRAFT 

 

                        
June 3, 2024 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting 
on Monday, June 3, 2024, at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John 
C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were in attendance. Also, present were County 
Manager/County Attorney Curtis S. Potter, Assistant County Manager, Jason Squires, 
Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 
 Chair Keyes called the meeting to order. Commissioner Walker gave the 
invocation.  Commissioner Phelps led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:   
 
 Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve tonight’s Agenda.        
Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA: 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, to 
be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Approval of Minutes of May 6 & May 20, 2024 
b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents  
c) RESO 2024-021 Approving & Accepting Sale of Real Property, 521 

Monroe St. 
d) JCPC Certification Standards & Washington County JCPC Membership 
e) Facility Use Policy 2024 

 
 Commissioner Johnson pointed out there are still blanks in d) but we can still pass 
it today and names added and approved at another date.  Commissioner Johnson would 
like to be in the County Commissioner slot. 
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.   
Commissioner Walker asked what positions are open.  Commissioner Johnson went over 
them. (maybe someone from A+ for one of them).  Commissioner Spruill seconded; 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC FORUM:   None. 

 
 EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER:  Chair Keyes read the following information 
about the June 2024 Employee of the Quarter. 

 
“This employee goes above and beyond to help keep her Department on top of their 

required workload.  She coordinates with other counties to cover work when we are required to 
assist other counties.  She helps out wherever she is needed and keeps morale high. She is also 
shared with another department and volunteers whenever her services are needed. She is a 
wonderful employee and is an asset to the community.” 



DRAFT 

 

 
This is a long-standing employee (of almost 20 years) who actually started out as an 

Income Maintenance Caseworker for DSS in November of 2004.  In February 2015, she was 
hired as the county’s Code Enforcement Officer, the position that she holds today.  

 
 Please join me in congratulating Ms. Connie Barnes as the June 2024 Employee of the 

Quarter. 
 
Chair Keyes presented Ms. Barnes with a certificate and she will be receiving a $50 

check. Chair Keyes noted that she worked with Ms. Barnes when she was the EM Director and 
can attest to what a good employee she is. 
 
 DEPARTMENTAL UPDATE:   Ms. Renee’ Collier, Senior Center Director gave 
the following presentation.(Put in presentation). 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW:   Chair Keyes asked for a motion 
to re-convene the Board of E&R.  Commissioner Phelps made a motion to re-convene 
the Board of E&R.  Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
Chair Keyes called on Ms. Wilkins, Tax Administrator.   Ms. Wilkins stated she 

had no appeals at this time.  
 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to adjourn the Board of E&R.  

Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
  

 QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING: SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR T.F. 
NIXON MEMORIAL GARDENS:    Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the Board, swore in the 
Commissioners as the Board of Adjustment.  
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to open the quasi-judicial hearing.  
Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mr. Potter went over the procedures for a quasi-judicial hearing. See below. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 Regarding any conflict of interest, Chair Keyes said she was related to the 
Applicant and made a motion to recuse herself.  Commissioner Phelps seconded the 
motion; motion passed unanimously.  The gavel was passed to the Vice-Chair Phelps to 
run this part of the meeting.  
 
 Ms. Mary Smith & Mr. Robert Smith, the applicant and her husband introduced 
themselves.  Mr. Pittman, Planning & Inspections Director, introduced himself.  Ms. 
Bennett, Clerk to the Board, swore them in. 
 
 Mr. Pittman spoke about of the information that was included in the 
Commissioners’ agenda package regarding the Special Use Permit and that the Planning 
Board was recommending to the Board of Adjustment that it be approved. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill asked if this cemetery would be used just for family.  Ms. 
Smith said yes, it will be for family only.  Mr. Potter asked would it be in a flood zone. 
Mr. Pittman said no, the land is not in a flood zone. 
 
 Mr. Potter stated that as we go forward there were more conditions that he thought 
should be in the Order when it is written up.  
 
 Commissioner Johnson asked if the applicant should be given this information 
ahead of time.  Mr. Pittman stated that we are allowed to add conditions to the Order. 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the Special Use Permit for T. 

F. Nixon Memorial Gardens as presented by the Planning Board.  Commissioner Walker 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion that this Special Use Permit be approved with 

the well set back of 50’ and filing with the Cemetery Commission.  Commissioner Walker 
seconded the motion; motion carried unanimously. 

 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to close the public hearing.  Commissioner 

Walker  seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 

FY25 BUDGET ORDINANCE:  Mr. Potter presented the following.  
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
Mr. Potter passed out a modification to the Sheriff’s Budget regarding positions and the 

Fee Schedule (now includes fees in the newly adopted (tonight) Facility Use Policy.) 
 



DRAFT 

 

Commissioner Spruill asked to pull out the funding for the Fire Departments as a separate 
part to be voted on. 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to pull out the funding for the Fire 

Departments as a separate part of the Budget Ordinance to be voted on. Commissioner 
Walker seconded the motion; motion carried unanimously. 
 

Commissioner Johnson asked if Commissioner Spruill has had a chance to ask the Fire 
Department about sending copies of their invoices to the County’s Finance Officer for purchases.   
Commissioner Spruill said they are supposed to be doing that. 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the Fire Departments’ budget 

with the $.01 increase with stipulations that requests of purchases go through the Fire 
Commission and then to the County Finance Officer.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  
The motion was carried with four (4) aye votes and one (1) recusal. 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the FY25 Budget 

Ordinance. Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 

amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  Please see below. 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

Ms. Dixon said the County received ~$93,000 and ~$35,000 respectively from previous 
Medicaid/Medicare audits.  

 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the budget transfers/ 

amendments as presented.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
 OTHER ITEMS BY COMMISSIONERS OR STAFF: 
 
 Commissioner Johnson: County Advocacy Days June 11-12, 2024, in Raleigh. Going to have 90 

people attending the dinner. 
 
 Chair Keyes: attended various meetings including the Board of DSS and also the MTW Health 

Fair. MTW had a Public Hearing on selling home health services and then they signed a letter of 
intent. 

 
 Mr. Potter:  the County did receive the 2nd payment of unpaid taxes from SunEnergy. 

 
 Ms. Bennett: The ABC items (FY24 budget amendment & proposed budget for FY25) were for 

information only. They are required to submit them to the Commissioners. 
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to 
NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-client privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) 
(personnel).  Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Back in Open Session,  Mr. Potter noted that a Special Called Meeting may be needed before the 
end of June regarding spending money for EMTOC. County staff have discussed making changes to the 
building to cut costs and have applied for a 911 grant and a FEMA grant (with no guarantees of getting 
them) and the County would still be short of funds for the EMTOC. 
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner 
Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 

    Ann C. Keyes        Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
            Chair          Clerk to the Board 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda July 1, 2024
	7-1-2024 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Tax, Refunds & Insolvents
	FY24 Pay Tables Schedule eff 7.16.24 draft20240626
	RESO 2024-22 Parks & Recreation Month
	Dominion Right of Way Easement 2 w RESO 2024-023 for 20240701 BOCC package
	RESO 2024-24 recognizing 250 celebration
	7-1-2024 Item 2 (public forum)
	7-1-2024 Item 3 Dept. Info--Soil & Water
	7-1-2024  Item 4 Tax Collector's Annual Settlement Report
	Order to Collect FY 24-25
	7-1-2024  Item 5 EMTOC Update
	EMTOC update
	B101-2017 - Working Draft - 001 (25).pdf
	2024-03-12 Washington Co EOC - Site Concept #8856.pdf
	Sheets
	PR6 - CONCEPT SITE PLAN #2



	7-1-2024  Item 6 Pocosin Charter facilitie-funding request
	Letter from Constance Davenport, PCS
	7-1-2024  Item 7 NCACC Voting Delegate
	7-1-2024 Item 8 Boards & Committees
	JCPC membership FY24-25
	7-1-2024  Item 9 Finance Officer's Report
	Budget Amendments-Transfers for 7-1-2024 Mtg
	Financial Report as of 6-25-24
	Revenue Transaction Report-Budget Amendments-Transfers as of 6-25-24
	Expenditure Transaction Report-Budget Amendments-Transfers as of 6-25-24
	7-1-2024 Item 10 Other Items
	7-1-2024 Item 11 Closed Session
	NCACC Legislative Goals Flowchart
	Reports for 7-1-2024 BoCC Meeting
	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	FY23-24 Statisitc Report (2)
	Utilities
	EMS
	Landfill
	Planning & Zoning
	 Tax
	Senior Center
	Detention
	Sheriff's Office
	Town of Plymouth

	6-3-2024 Minutes

